
 
 

City of Apopka 
Planning Commission 

Special Meeting Agenda 
November 24, 2015 

5:01 PM @ CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 

 
If you wish to appear before the Planning Commission, please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak” card 
to the Recording Secretary. 
 
II.    OPENING AND INVOCATION 
 
III.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  None 
 
IV.    PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
1. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT MASTER SITE PLAN - 1ST AMENDMENT – Owned 

by RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc./Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores LLC; Applicant is 
AutoZone Stores, LLC; engineer is CPH Engineering, Inc., c/o Joshua D. Lockhart, P.E., 
property located north of U.S. 441 (a.k.a. Orange Blossom Trail) and east of Errol 
Parkway. (Parcel ID No. 05-21-28-0000-00-031)  

 
2. CHANGE OF ZONING/ MASTER SITE PLAN – Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions LLC, 

owned by Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC; Engineer is American Civil 
Engineering Co., c/o John Herbert, P.E., from “County” I-4 (ZIP) and “City” I-1 to “City” 
Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2), for property located at 100 & 126 Hermit Smith 
Road. (Parcel ID #s: 01-21-27-0000-00-026; 01-21-27-0000-00-080) 

 
V.     SITE PLANS: 

 
1. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – COPART - Owned by Copart, Inc.; engineer is 

Burkett Engineering, c/o William E. Burkett, P.E., property located at 3351 West Orange 
Blossom Trail. (Parcel ID #: 01-21-27-0000-00-032)  

 
 

1



Page 2 
 
 
VI.    OLD BUSINESS: 
 
VII.   NEW BUSINESS: 
 

VIII.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any of 
these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less than 
48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  

2



Page 3 
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT MASTER SITE PLAN - 1ST AMENDMENT – Owned by RaceTrac 

Petroleum, Inc./Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores LLC; Applicant is AutoZone Stores, LLC; engineer is CPH 
Engineering, Inc., c/o Joshua D. Lockhart, P.E., property located north of U.S. 441 (a.k.a. Orange Blossom 
Trail) and east of Errol Parkway. (Parcel ID No. 05-21-28-0000-00-031)  

  

3



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

  X  PUBLIC HEARING      MEETING OF: November 24, 2015 
       SPECIAL REPORTS      FROM:  Community Development  
       PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 
  X  OTHER:           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           PUD Master Plan 
           Color Rendering 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT:  RACETRAC/AUTOZONE AMENDMENT TO THE PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PUD) MASTER PLAN 

       

Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE AMENDMENT TO THE 

RACETRAC/AUTOZONE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) 

MASTER PLAN. (PARCEL ID #: 05-21-28-0000-00-039)  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:   RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc.\Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC 
 
APPLICANT:   AutoZone Stores, LLC 
 
ENGINEER:   CPH c/o Joshua D. Lockhart, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: 1305 West Orange Blossom Trail 

(North of U.S. HWY 441 (a.k.a. Orange Blossom Trail) and East of Errol Parkway) 
 

EXISTING USE:  Convenience Store w/ Fueling Stations 
 
LAND USE:   Commercial  
 
ZONING:   PUD/C-2   
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Retail Auto Parts Store 
 
PROPOSED LOTS:  Lot 1: 2.08 +/- Acres     Lot 2: 0.89 +/- Acres 
 
TOTAL ACRES:  2.94 +/- Acres 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk    
City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief  
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief 
 

G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\REZONING\2015\RaceTrac-Auto Zone\1 Race Trac-Autozone PUD - PC - 11-10-15.docx 

 4



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 24, 2015 

RACETRAC/AUTOZONE PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 2 

 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Medium (0-10du/ac) R-2 Residential Subdivision 

East (City) Commercial PUD Retail Shopping Center (Victoria Plaza) 

South (City) Commercial C-2 Commercial Retail (Verizon Wireless) 

West (County) Commercial C-2 Commercial Retail 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The original PUD Master Plan was adopted on March 6, 2013, through 
Ordinance #2292 allowing PO/I, CN, C-1, and automotive fuel sales, which is C-2 district permissible use.  
The PUD Master Plan amendment creates two separate lots with an existing gas station and a proposed 
AutoZone retail store.  Lot 1, identifies the existing Marathon (formerly known as RaceTrac) gas station 
consisting of a 5,928 s.f. convenience store with fueling stations.  On Lot 2, AutoZone Store, LLC is 
proposing to construct a 6,815 s.f. retail store with 27 parking spaces. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Compliance:   The proposed PUD (Planned Unit Development/C-2) zoning is 
consistent with the City’s Commercial Future Land Use category. Development plans shall not exceed the 
intensity allowed under the adopted Future Land Use designation. 
 
Land Use Compatibility:  The Property is located on a major arterial road (West Orange Blossom Trail).The 
proposed use and zoning will not create any land use or traffic compatibility issues with adjacent uses.  
Development of the site must occur consistent with standards set forth in the Land Development Code and 
Development Design Guidelines unless otherwise approved within the PUD master site plan. 
 
Buffer Yard Requirements:  Areas adjacent to all road right of ways shall provide a minimum ten foot 
landscape bufferyard.  Areas adjacent to residential uses or districts shall provide a ten foot high masonry 
wall within a ten-foot landscape buffer.  
 
PROPOSED PUD RECOMMENDATIONS: The PUD recommendations are that the zoning 
classification of the following described property be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as 
defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following Master Plan provisions: 
 
Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as Planned Unit 
Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following Master 
Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district are PO/I, CN, C-1, and automotive fuel sales, which is 
C-2 district permissible use. 

 
B. All development standards set forth in the Land Development Code and Development Design 

Guidelines shall apply to development within the PUD unless as otherwise allowed and defined as 
follows: 

 
1. Signage shall comply with the City’s sign codes unless otherwise approved through a master 

sign plan 
 
2.   Illumination plan shall be provided with the preliminary or final development plan. 
 
3.  No outside activities including but not limited to, outside storage of parts, vending machines, 

supplies, merchandise or materials. 
 5



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 24, 2015 

RACETRAC/AUTOZONE PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 3 

 

C. The C-1 zoning standards shall apply to the development of the subject property unless otherwise 
established herein this ordinance. 

 
D.  A cross access easement shall be illustrated in the  preliminary and final development plans and the 

plat that connect the U.S. 441 entrance to the eastern boundary of the project, allowing for future 
connection to the Victoria Plaza. 

 
E.  The parcel split shall occur through a plat at the time of the final development plan application. 

 
WAIVER REQUESTS:  The applicant has proposed the below waiver requests (which appear on the cover 
sheet of the Master Plan).  As the applicant has applied for a PUD zoning, these waiver requests will be 
listed as Development Standards approved for the subject property. No separate action is necessary for each 
waiver.  Thus, the below waivers are considered to be additional development standards that will be 
incorporated in the PUD ordinance, unless specifically amended or denied by City Council. 
 

1. Waiver Request #1:  LDC 2.02.13.G.3 requires areas adjacent to nonresidential uses or districts shall 
provide a minimum five-foot landscaped bufferyard. The applicant is requesting a joint 5 feet wide 
landscape buffer between Lot 1 and 2 in lieu of the required five feet on each parcel.   

 
Justification: Both sites are commercial use and there will be substantial landscaping within the 5’ 
buffer, including 7 ea Crape Myrtle w/ 2” min Caliper 8’ minimum height, 48 ea. Sweet Viburnum 
Hedge 24” minimum height 36” o.c. and Parsons Juniper 24” o.c.  The panhandle portion of the 
Race Trac parcel will be left as open space. 
 
Staff Recommendation: DRC does not object to the waiver request. 
 

2. Waiver Request #2: LDC 6.03.02 Commercial uses not otherwise classified to provide 1 space for 
each 200 square feet of gross floor area. The applicant is requesting the off-street parking to be 
counted at 1 space per 300 square feet of gross building square footage. 
 
Justification: Autozone is comfortable with this parking ratio and it is comparable to other stores 
sites..  The easements, access to and from the adjacent parcels, and the required stormwater reduce 
the parking lot size. Parking that is provided and not necessary only provides for more impervious 
area, which impairs recharge to the aquifer, which does not meet the goals and objective of the City 
of Apopka Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Staff Recommendation: DRC does not object to the waiver request. 
 

3. Waiver Request #3: LDC 6.05.00.D.6.A, requires the minimum requirements for maintenance 
berms are ten feet around pond perimeter.  The applicant is requesting a reduction in width of the 
maintenance berm of 10 feet with fencing to 5 feet for Lot 2. 
 
Justification:  The proposed concrete wall is set back 10’ from the property line, due to an existing 
easement.  An additional 10’ berm on the site side of the wall would take up additional room for 
recharge of the stormwater ponds, necessary to meet the goals and objectives of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed pond is dry and will allow for maintenance and upkeep from 
inside the pond.  

 
Staff Recommendation: DRC does not object to the waiver request. 

 
4. Waiver Request #4: The applicant is requesting a reduction of the requirement of no more than 50% 

of the required parking spaces in front of the building.    
 
 6



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 24, 2015 

RACETRAC/AUTOZONE PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 4 

 

Justification:  The overall total number of parking was reduced from 32 to 27, in order to reduce the 
number of parking spaces in the front.  This reduction provided for wider landscape islands, which 
is in the spirit of the ordinance.  The reduction also allows for a cross access drive aisle in the future 
to the Victoria Plaza. 

 
Staff Recommendation: DRC does not object to the waiver request. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
Planning Commission – November 24, 2015, 5:01 p.m. 
City Council – December 2, 2015, 1:30 p.m. – First Reading 
City Council – December 16, 2015, 7:00 p.m. – Second Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 23, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 4, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/map 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommended approval of the Racetrac/Autozone PUD 
Master Plan Amendment for the property owned by Race Trac Petroleum, Inc. and Spirit SPE Portfolio CA 
C-Stores, LLC, located north of U.S. Highway 441 aka (Orange Blossom Trail) and east of Errol Parkway, 
subject to PUD Recommendations and the information and findings in the staff report. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 10, 2015, continued this item to the Special 

Planning Commission meeting on November 24, 2015, due to a change of ownership for part of the 

property. 
 
Planning Commission Role:  Advisory to City Council.  Planning Commission can recommend to approve, 
deny or to approve with conditions. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

7



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 24, 2015 

RACETRAC/AUTOZONE PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 5 

 

Application:  PUD Master Plan Amendment   

Applicant:  AutoZone Store, LLC 

Owner:  Racetrac Petroleum, Inc. and Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC 

Engineer:  CPH, Inc. c/o Joshua D. Lockhart , P.E. 

Parcel ID Nos.:   05-21-28-0000-00-039 

Total Acres:  2.94 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Subject Property 

8



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 24, 2015 

RACETRAC/AUTOZONE PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 6 

 

Application:  PUD Master Plan Amendment   

Applicant:  AutoZone Store, LLC 

Owner:  Racetrac Petroleum, Inc. and Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC 

Engineer:  CPH, Inc. c/o Joshua D. Lockhart , P.E. 

Parcel ID Nos.:   05-21-28-0000-00-039 

Total Acres:  2.94 +/- 

 

ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 

9



10



11



12



13



Page 14 
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
2. CHANGE OF ZONING/ MASTER SITE PLAN – Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions LLC, owned by Raynor 

Apopka Land Management, LLC; Engineer is American Civil Engineering Co., c/o John Herbert, P.E., from 
“County” I-4 (ZIP) and “City” I-1 to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2), for property located at 100 & 
126 Hermit Smith Road. (Parcel ID #s: 01-21-27-0000-00-026; 01-21-27-0000-00-080) 

  

14



CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING     DATE:  November 24, 2015 
          ANNEXATION     FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL     EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
          OTHER:         Vicinity Map 
          Adjacent Zoning Map 
          Adjacent Uses Map 
          Master Plan/Preliminary Dev. Plan 
          Landscape Plan  
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS LLC - CHANGE OF ZONING 
     
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 01-21-27-0000-00-026 & 01-21-27-0000-00-080 
 

Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE CHANGE OF ZONING FROM 
“COUNTY” I-4 (ZIP) & “CITY” I-1 TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PUD/I-2); AND RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 
MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN. 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER:   Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC 
 
APPLICANT/ENGINEER: American Civil Engineering Co., c/o John Herbert, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: 100 & 126 Hermit Smith Road (Southern terminus of Hermit Smith Road) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land, warehouse, office 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” I-4 (ZIP) and “City” I-1 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Mulch Operation 
 
TRACT SIZE:   19.4 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 507,038 sq. ft. 
    PROPOSED: 507,038 sq. ft.  
 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director  Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director   City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director   Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   

 
 
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Rezoning\2015\Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions\Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions ZON PC 11-24-15 15



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 24, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Parcel No. 01-21-27-0000-00-026 was annexed into the City of Apopka on 

November 1, 2006, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 1877.  Parcel No. 01-21-27-0000-00-080 was annexed 

into the City of Apopka on February 2, 2005, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 1733.   The proposed Change 

of Zoning is being requested by the applicant, Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC. 

   

The zoning application covers approximately 19.4 +/- acres.  The property owner intends to use the site for a mulch 

production manufacturing operation.  This use involves the following activities:  heavy outdoor mulching 

equipment, outdoor storage of raw materials, large trucks entering and leaving the property with raw materials 

(removed or harvested trees or tree limbs) or finished product (landscape mulch).  An office use will occur at the 

site for on-site management of operations and for business sales.  The office use is ancillary to the mulch production 

operation.  Based on the storage of outdoor raw material as well as a manufacturing operation that does not occur 

within an enclosed building, the proposed use meets the intent of the I-2 zoning category.   Both parcels have been 

acquired by and under legal ownership of the applicant.  The smaller of the two parcels, Parcel Number 01-21-27-

0000-00-080, is approximately 4.15 acres has not been assigned a City zoning category but currently retains a 

County zoning category of I-4 Industrial.  The County’s I-4 zoning category is similar to the City’s I-2 zoning 

category.  The larger parcel, Parcel Number 01-21-27-0000-00-026, is approximately 15.25 acres and has a City I-

1 zoning assigned to it.  The proposed use does not meet the intent of the I-1 zoning category and requires I-2 

zoning.   

 

The applicant originally sought I-2 zoning for the subject property.  However, the City’s planning staff determined 

that many of the uses proposed under I-2 zoning are too intensive considering the predominant land uses in the 

surrounding area are zoned for I-1, conservation, or agriculture.  However, the mulch production use, as proposed, 

is a use that planning staff considers to be compatible with the surrounding area.  Taking into consideration the 

opinion of the Planning staff, the applicant agreed to apply for a PUD zoning that will limit the use of the subject 

property to only the mulch production operation and any related ancillary uses, as well as any I-1 uses currently 

allowed. 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 

public facilities exist to support this change of zoning (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

The PUD recommendations are that the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as 

Planned Unit Development (PUD\I-2), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following 

Master Plan provisions are subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

A. The zoning and uses permitted within the PUD district for the subject property shall be:   

 

1. Use of the subject property will be limited to the manufacturing and production of mulch with outdoor 

storage of raw materials and with outdoor manufacturing operations.  All outdoor storage and outdoor 

manufacturing operations shall be located within a screened area not visible from adjacent properties or 

streets.  Outdoor mulch manufacturing and the outdoor storage of raw materials are the only I-2 uses 

that are allowed. 

 

2. Any I-1 or C-3 permitted use is allowed. 

 

3. C-2, C-1, CN, or PO/I permitted uses will not be allowed as a primary use.  Any office use shall be 

associated with the industrial activity occurring at the subject site. 16



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 24, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

 

4. Any use of the property other than the permitted uses described above, shall require an amendment to 

the PUD through the zoning process. 

 

5. Overnight parking of trucks or other large vehicles shall only occur within the boundaries of the Master 

Site Plan and within areas so designated on said Plan.  No overnight parking of trucks will be allowed 

within the office parking lots.  No parking of any vehicle will occur within any roadway easement 

running within the subject property or abutting the eastern property line. 

 

6. Outdoor storage of raw materials shall only occur at approved locations denoted within the Master Site 

Plan. 

 

7. All mulching equipment shall only be placed in the areas denoted on the Master Site Plan. 

 

8. No parking of any vehicle or truck or outdoor storage shall occur within any landscape buffer area 

appearing on the Master Site Plan. 

 

B. Development standards and conditions required of any development within the PUD district for the subject 

property shall be: 

 

1.  Building elevations will be provided at time of a Final Development Plan application. 

 

2. Maximum height of any building, mulch conveyor belts, manufacturing equipment, raw material piles 

are not to exceed thirty-five feet from the finished ground level. 

 

3. All perimeter landscape areas shall be protected from vehicle encroachment by curbing or wheel stops. 

    

C. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City within two 

years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. 

At such time, the City Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Preliminary Development Plan; 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new Master Plan 

provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

4. Unless otherwise addressed within the PUD development standards, the I-1 zoning standards will apply 

to the subject property. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) zoning 

designation is consistent with the Industrial (0.60 FAR) future land use designation and the proposed use of the 

property.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Because this change of zoning represents a change to a non-residential 

designation, notification of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 

 17



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 24, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public 

hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on September 11, 2015. 

 

WAIVERS:  The applicant has proposed the below waiver requests (which appear on the cover sheet of the Master 

Plan).  As the applicant has applied for a PUD zoning, these waiver requests will be listed as Development Standards 

approved for the subject property.  Thus, the below waivers are considered to be additional development standards 

that will be incorporated in the PUD ordinance, unless specifically amended or denied by City Council. 

 

1. LDC, Section 2.02.15. G.1. - Areas adjacent to all roads shall provide eight (8) foot masonry wall within a 

minimum 25-foot landscaped bufferyard.   Applicant is requesting a waiver to allow a 10-foot landscaped 

bufferyard due to the easement in lieu of a road abuts the eastern property line and a fence will provide a 

black or green vinyl coated chain link fence adjacent property to zoned I-1.  

 

2. LDC, Section 2.02.15. G.2. - Areas adjacent to agricultural districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall 

within a minimum of ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.  Applicant is requesting a waiver to allow a 10-foot 

landscaped bufferyard with a 6-foot chain link fence.  The justifications for the request is due to the property 

to the west containing vegetation from a fern growing operating that blocks the view; and the property to the 

north is a citrus grove with a dense 6-foot hedge.  The chain link fence will be green or black vinyl coated. 

  

3. LDC, Section 2.02.15. G.3. - Areas adjacent to residential districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall 

within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped bufferyard.  Applicant is requesting a waiver to allow a 30-foot 

buffer with a 6-foot chain link along the property line to the north because the adjacent land is owned by 

the Applicant and is intended to be rezoning to I-1.  Additionally, the Applicant is requesting a waiver to 

allow a 20-foot buffer along the southern property line because the adjacent property is a borrow pit that is 

not conducive to residential use. The chain link fence will be green or black vinyl coated. 

 

4. LDC, Section 2.02.15.G.2. – A 6’foot high masonry wall is required adjacent to a citrus grove and is not 

anticipated to develop as residential.  No public access is near this area and will not be highly visible.  The 

chain link fence will be green or black vinyl coated. 

 

5. LCD, Section 2.02.15.G.3. – A 20 foot buffer and a 6-foot high masonry wall is required adjacent to residen-

tial zoned property.  The abutting residential-zoned parcel is owned by Raynor Shine LLC, and the access 

drive crosses that parcel.  Raynor Shine plans to request to rezone that parcel to Office or Industrial use in 

the future. 

 

Staff does not object to any of the above waiver requests, and will incorporate these waivers as devel-

opment standards within the PUD zoning ordinance. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 24, 2015 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

December 2, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 

December 16, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

September 25, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

November 6, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/map 

  

18



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 24, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission address to separate actions for this case – one for the PUD\I-2 

zoning and another for the Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

1. The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and recommends approval of the change in zoning from “County” I-4 (ZIP) and “City” I-1 to “City” 

Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) for the property owned by Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC. 

 

2.  The Development Review Committee finds the proposed Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan 

to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommends approval of 

the Master Site Plan\preliminary Development Plan subject to the development standards and conditions 

recommended in the staff report, for the property owned by Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 10, 2015, continued this item to the Special Planning 

Commission meeting on November 24, 2015, due to the incorrect site plan having been included in the staff report. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

19



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 24, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (1 du/10 ac/Agricultural) A-1 vacant 

East (City) Industrial (0.60 FAR) I-4 warehouse\trucking business 

South (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) Mixed-EC vacant 

West (County) Rural (1 du/10 ac/Agricultural) A-1 warehouse 

 

LAND USE &  

TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The Property has access to a Hermit Smith Road through an access easement 

that the property owner has demonstrated rights thereto.  Hermit Smith Road 

allows for easy access to a regional highway that leads to U.S. 441 and 

429/S.R. 451.   

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) zoning is consistent with 

the City’s Industrial Future Land Use Designation. Development plans shall 

not exceed the density allowed under the adopted future land use designation. 

 

PUD/I-2 DISTRICT  

REQUIREMENTS:  The PUD describes the development standards that apply. The I-1 

development standards are listed below. 

Minimum Site Area: 25,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width: 150 ft. 

Setbacks:        Front: 25 ft. from property line 

 

                       Rear: 10 ft., except where rear lot lines abut a residential 

district, then all structures shall be set back a 

minimum of 30 feet or a distance equivalent to 

any required bufferyard, whichever is greater.  

 

                       Side: 10 ft. from property line or a distance equivalent 

to any required bufferyard, whichever is greater. 

All yards adjacent to road rights-of-way shall be 

a minimum of 25 feet. 

 

Zero Lot Lines: Rear yards and side yards may be reduced to zero 

when the rear or side property lines abut the 

boundary of a railroad right-of-way, but only in 

those cases where an adjacent wall or walls of a 

building or structure are provided with railroad 

loading and unloading capabilities.  

  

 
20



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 24, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

BUFFER-YARD  

REQUIREMENTS:  Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide eight (8) foot masonry 

wall within a minimum 25-foot landscaped bufferyard. Areas adjacent to 

agricultural districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall within a 

minimum of ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.  Areas adjacent to residential 

districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall within a minimum of 50-

foot landscaped bufferyard. Areas adjacent to nonresidential, non-I-2 

industrial uses or districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall within a 

minimum of ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. I-2 uses occurring adjacent to 

existing I-2 districts or uses shall be required to provide a ten-foot landscaped 

bufferyard.  

 

ALLOWABLE USES:  The only I-2 use that is allowed through the PUD\I-2 zoning is outdoor mulch 

operation and outdoor storage of raw materials. 

 

Any use permitted in the I-1 District. Bus, cab and truck storage and terminals. 

Building material and contractor's storage, equipment yards and sales. 

Machinery storage.  Bulk storage of petroleum.  Asphalt (or similar petroleum 

product), cement, lime, gypsum or plaster of paris or concrete manufacturing, 

mixing or refining or the open storage of raw materials or finished products 

related to such manufacture.  Blast furnace or similar heat or glare-generating 

operations.  Corrosive acid manufacture or bulk storage, including, but not 

limited to, hydrochloric, nitric, sulfuric or similar acids.  Fertilizer 

manufacturing and processing.  Junk, salvage or wrecking yard or structure 

wherein motor vehicles, appliances or similar use equipment or materials are 

stored, dismantled or store for display, sale or packing; provided, all open 

storage and processing activities are enclosed within a wall or structure.  

Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses permitted herein 

which adhere to the intent of the district and which are not prohibited as 

specified in this Code. Use determination shall be based upon the community 

development director's recommendation.  

 

  

21



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 24, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

Raynor Shine Recycling Services, Inc. 
19.4 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 507,038 sq. ft. 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 507,038 sq. ft. 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” I-4 (ZIP) & “City” I-1 

To: “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) 
Parcel ID #s: 01-21-217-0000-00-026 & 01-21-217-0000-00-080 

 

          

VICINITY MAP 
 
 

 
 

  

Subject Property 

22



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 24, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

  

Subject Property 

23



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVMEBER 24, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

24



1

VICINITY  MAP

Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions, LLC
PUD  Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan

REVISIONSDATE
5/20/14 first edition

Apopka, Florida 32703136 Hermit Smith Road,

Apopka, Florida 32703

5

LAND

CIVIL

Alt. Springs,  Florida   32716
PO Box 160952
Ellis Surveys LLC

American Civil Engineering Co.
207 N. Moss Road, Suite 211

John Herbert, P.E.
Winter Springs, Florida  32708

(407) 327-7700

PROPERTY OWNER:

(407) 470-0142 

Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions, LLC

Ocoee,  Florida  34761
850 Ocoee Apopka Road

(407) 834-4003

ENGINEER:

SURVEYOR:
(boundary)

LAND

Orlando, Florida  32779
318 Sweetwater Creek Drive W.,
Hitt Land Surveyors, Inc.

Jeffrey J. Hitt, PSM
(407) 772-0248

SURVEYOR:
(topographic)

Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions, LLC

136 Hermit Smith Road

Scale: 1 inch = 500 feet

500'250'0'

6/11/14 second edition

PUD  Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan

6/25/14 third edition
8/07/14 forth edition
10/02/15 fifth edition
10/16/15 sixth edition

25



R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

TE

2 5

Scale: 1 inch = 50 feet

100'50'25'0'

9/
11

/1
4

ad
d 

30
' F

ut
ur

e 
R

O
W

 &
 u

til
ity

 e
as

em
en

t
10

/2
/1

5
R

EV
IS

ED
  P

ER
 C

IT
Y

 R
EV

IE
W

10
/1

6/
15

R
EV

IS
ED

  P
ER

 C
IT

Y
 R

EV
IE

W

26



R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

TE

3 5

Scale: 1 inch = 50 feet

100'50'25'0'

6/
10

/1
4

SE
C

O
N

D
 E

D
IT

IO
N

6/
27

/1
4

TH
IR

D
 E

D
IT

IO
N

8/
7/

14
FO

R
TH

  E
D

IT
IO

N
8/

14
/1

4
ad

d 
U

til
ity

 E
as

em
en

t o
n 

Ea
st

 si
de

 o
f s

ite
10

/2
/1

5
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 R

EV
IE

W
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
10

/1
6/

15
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 R

EV
IE

W
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS

27



R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

TE

4 5

Scale: 1 inch = 50 feet

100'50'25'0'

6/
10

/1
4

SE
C

O
N

D
 E

D
IT

IO
N

6/
27

/1
4

TH
IR

D
 E

D
IT

IO
N

8/
7/

14
FO

R
TH

  E
D

IT
IO

N
10

/2
/1

5
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 R

EV
IE

W
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
10

/1
6/

15
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 R

EV
IE

W
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS

28



R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

TE

5 5

Scale: 1 inch = 50 feet

100'50'25'0'

6/
10

/1
4

SE
C

O
N

D
 E

D
IT

IO
N

6/
27

/1
4

TH
IR

D
 E

D
IT

IO
N

8/
7/

14
FO

R
TH

  E
D

IT
IO

N
10

/2
/1

5
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 R

EV
IE

W
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
10

/1
6/

15
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 R

EV
IE

W
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS

29



Page 30 
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 
1. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – COPART - Owned by Copart, Inc.; engineer is Burkett 

Engineering, c/o William E. Burkett, P.E., property located at 3351 West Orange Blossom Trail. (Parcel ID #: 
01-21-27-0000-00-032)  

  

30



    

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISION 

   
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: November 24, 2015 

 ANNEXATION  FROM: Community Development 

 PLAT APPROVAL  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Maps 

X OTHER: Preliminary Development Plan   Site/Landscape Plans 

    Building Elevations 

    Light Pole Fixtures 

    Exterior Wall Photos 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT:         PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - COPART 

       
Request: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN FOR COPART AND CONSIDERATION OF WAIVERS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Copart of Connecticut, Inc. 
 
ENGINEER:   Burkett Engineering c/o Rene J. Schneider, P.E.  
 
ARCHITECT: Fugleberg Koch, PLLC c/o Norman W. Nesmith, AIA 
 
LOCATION: 3351 West Orange Blossom Trail 
 
PARCEL ID #:  01-21-27-0000-00-032 
 
LAND USE: Industrial 
 
ZONING: I-1 
 
EXISTING USE: Abandoned Industrial Facility 
 
PROPOSED USE:  Office, warehouse and outdoor damaged vehicle storage site 
 
TRACT SIZE:   57.89 +/- acres 
 
BUILDING SIZE: 24,000 sq. ft. - Industrial Warehouse (16,500 S.F.) w/ Office Space (7,500 S.F.)   
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)           HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby      IT Director     Fire Chief  

Community Dev. Director        Police Chief    

 
G:\CommDev\PLANNINGZONING\SITEPLANS\2015\Copart\Copart PDP – Planning Commission 11-24-15.docx   

31



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 24, 2015 
COPART – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Mixed Use 

 

Zip 

 

Used Car Sales 

Tire Sales 

North (County) Rural A-1 Single Family Residential 

East (City) Industrial I-1 Industrial Warehouse 

South (City) Institutional PO/I Cemetery 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Property 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Foliage Nursery 

West (County) Rural R-3 Single Family Residential 

         

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Copart - Preliminary Development Plan proposes to renovate and remodel 

an existing 24,000 square foot metal building for warehouse and office use.  Copart, Inc. provides vehicle 

suppliers (primarily insurance companies) with a full range of services to process and sell intact damaged vehicles, 

principally to licensed dismantlers, rebuilders and used vehicle dealers. 

       

PARKING:  A total of 68 parking spaces are provided (63 required by code) of which 3 are reserved as a 

handicapped parking space.   

 

ACCESS:  Access to the site is provided by an existing driveway cut along West Orange Blossom Trail 

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  Staff has found the proposed building elevations to be in accordance with the 

City’s Development Design Guidelines. 

   

STORMWATER:   Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site stormwater drainage 

system.  The stormwater management system is designed according to standards set forth in the Land 

Development Code.  

 

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:  The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the 

property. The proposed landscape buffer along the western and southern boundaries of the site does not confirm 

with section 5.01.01.B. The planting materials and irrigation system design are not consistent with the water-

efficient landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.  A tree survey and mitigation plan will be submitted 

with the final development plan. 

 

SITE LIGHTING:  The Development Design Guidelines section 4.9 require decorative light to be install along 

the roadway frontage of all non-residential structures. The proposed light poles and fixtures do not meet the 

Development Design Guidelines standard decorative standards.  The Development Review Committee does not 

support the use of the proposed light poles and fixtures.   

 

ENVIRONMENTAL:  Based on the results of the habitat study, the developer must obtain approval from the 

Florida Department of Environmental Protection prior to commencing any site construction activity. 

  

32



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 24, 2015 
COPART – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

 

WAIVER REQUESTS: 

 

1. Waiver Request #1:  The applicant is requesting a waiver from LDC 2.02.15.G to allow the installation of an 

eight (8) feet high metal wall along the east, west and south sides of the property. 

 

Justification: The increased eight (8) feet high metal wall will provide increased screening and security of the 

property.   

 

DRC recommendation -- DRC does not support this waiver request.  

 

2. Waiver Request #2:  The applicant is requesting a waiver to LDC 6.03.01.A to allow the use of rock in lieu 

of a hard surface for the vehicle storage area. 

 

Justification: The vehicle storage area is not accessible to the general public. 

 

DRC recommendation-- DRC supports this waiver request. 

 

3.   Waiver Request #3:  The applicant is requesting a waiver to install non-decorative light poles and fixtures. 

 

      Justification:  The light pole and fixtures are consistent with the contemporary/modern style of the building.  

 

DRC recommendation -- DRC supports this waiver request. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 24, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

December 2, 2015 - City Council (1:30 pm)  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends the approval of the Copart Preliminary Development Plan 

and to deny waiver request number one. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 10, 2015, continued this item to the Special Planning 

Commission meeting on November 24, 2015, due to the applicant not providing necessary documentation in a 

timely manner. 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development 

application is to advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency with 

the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code 

 

Recommend approval of the Copart – Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

33



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 24, 2015 
COPART – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Preliminary Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Copart of Connecticut, Inc.              

Engineer:  Burkett Engineering c/o Rene J. Schneider, P.E. 
Architect:  Fugleberg Koch, PLLC. c/o Norman W. Nesmith, AIA 
Parcel I.D. No:    01-21-27-0000-00-032 
Location:  3351 West Orange Blossom Trail 
Acres:  57.89 +/-  

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 34



PLANNING COMMISSION – NOVEMBER 24, 2015 
COPART – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

 
Application:  Preliminary Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Copart of Connecticut, Inc.              

Engineer:  Burkett Engineering c/o Rene J. Schneider, P.E. 
Architect:  Fugleberg Koch, PLLC. c/o Norman W. Nesmith, AIA 
Parcel I.D. No:    01-21-27-0000-00-032 
Location:  3351 West Orange Blossom Trail 
Acres:  57.89 +/-  

 
  

AERIAL MAP 

 

 
 

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46


	Top
	1. 11-24-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Amendment to PUD Master Plan - RaceTrac Petrolium, LLC/Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores LLC
	1 Race Trac-Autozone PUD - PC - 11-24-15.pdf
	2 RaceTrac - AutoZone PUD Master Plan.pdf
	3 RaceTrac - AutoZone Color Elevation.pdf

	2. 11-24-15 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions, LLC
	1 Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions PC 11-24-15.pdf
	2 Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions Master Plan_Landscape Plan.pdf

	1. 11-24-15 - PC - Site Plan - Preliminary Dev Plan - Copart
	1 Coparts PDP - Planning Commission 11-24-15.pdf
	2 Coparts-Site Plan-Landscape.pdf
	3 Copart Building Elevations.pdf
	4 Coparts Light Fixtures.pdf
	5 Coparts Exterior Wall.pdf

	Bottom

